
 

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-07-07CityCouncil/2022-07-07CityCouncilAgenda.docx 
7/6/2022 1:43 PM 

                  

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 
 CITY OF WATERLOO COUNCIL AGENDA 

COUNCIL CHAMBER OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING – 136 N. MONROE STREET 
Thursday, July 7, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
Participate Remotely Or In-Person 

Updated 7/6/2022  1:45 pm 

Join Zoom Meeting  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89780046757?pwd=Lp2fFbpcQt3RSBQdTnT0mJNP7B-mC0.1 
Meeting ID: 897 8004 6757     Passcode: 121774 
Dial by phone    +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public 
meeting will be held to consider the following: 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 
 

2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL : June 16, 2022 open and closed session 
 

3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4) OLD BUSINESS 
 

5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting) 
a) 06/21/2022 CDA 
b) 06/22/2022 Board of Review 
c) 06/27/2022 Fire/EMS Meeting 
d) 06/28/2022 Plan Commission 
e) 06/28/2022 Library Board 
f) 06/07/2022 Public Safety & Health Committee 
g) 06/07/2022 Public Works & Property Committee 

 
6) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
  

a) Plan Commission 

i) Ordinance §385-10 B(7) Conditional Use Application, Wesley Schmidgall, For The Property Located at 131 
Mill St, Waterloo. The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow for an additional garage on the 
subject parcel. A conditional use permit is required for a Residential District (R-2) property when an additional 
garage or accessory building exceeds 144 square feet. Tax Parcel 290-0813-0533-028.  Also known as 131 Mill 
St.   

ii) Ordinance §385-31 Changes and  Amendments of the Zoning Code of the City of Waterloo.  Application.  
Duquaine Development regarding the property located along N Monroe St and Clarkson Rd.  Parcel 
#290-0813-0611-006, located in Waterloo.  The land use-rezoning request is to allow a changed in land 

use from existing Agricultural District (A) §385-18 to a Planned Development (PDD) §385-31 for 

purposes of establishing residential dwelling units on the parcels.  Lot Description : LOT 1, CSM 6081-
35-257, DOC 1426857. 

 
b) Finance 

i) 2011 Ford F550 Truck – engine issues.  Discussion on how to proceed. 
 

ii) Skag Cheetah mower – engine issues  Discussion on how to proceed.   
 

c) Cable TV Board 
i) Confirming Paula Jacobs for the open board position (2021-2024) 

 
d) Public Safety and Health 

i) Event Permit – Block Party Milwaukee St  Tuttle – July 16th 

http://www.waterloowi.us/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89780046757?pwd=Lp2fFbpcQt3RSBQdTnT0mJNP7B-mC0.1


 

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-07-07CityCouncil/2022-07-07CityCouncilAgenda.docx 
7/6/2022 1:43 PM 

e) Plan Commission & CDA 
i) 333 Portland Road – CDA and Plan Commission recommend accepting the offer to purchase from Nate 

Snyder. [NOTE: The City Council may meet in closed session per Wis. Stat. 19.85(1) Deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified 
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. Upon concluding a 
closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session.] 
 

  
7) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Resolution 2022-23 Appointing Sarah Davison as a  Deputy Clerk for Election Administration Purposes 
 

 
8) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
9) ADJOURNMENT 

 
Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer       Posted & Emailed: 06/30/2022  

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above 

meeting(s) to gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be 

made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the 
clerk’s office at the above location 



Page 1 of 2  
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-06-16City Council/2022-06-
02CityCouncilMinutes.docx 
6/28/2022 3:54 PM 

CITY OF WATERLOO COMMON COUNCIL - MEETING MINUTES: June 16, 2022 
[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record] 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL. Mayor Quimby called the meeting to order at 7:00 

p.m. Alderpersons present: Cummings,A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Griffin, Thomas, and Petts.  Alderpersons attending 
remotely:  none.  Absent: Weihert. Others attending remotely or in-person: Police Chief Sorenson; Treasurer/ 
Deputy Clerk Tschanz; Utility Supervisor Sorenson; Utility Office Manager Joy Bisco; Library Director Kelli 
Mountford; Clerk Jeanne Ritter; Ben Heidemann, David Ferris from Ehlers, Mitchell Leisses, Andrew Nothem DDS, 
Marcia Jasek  DDS, Emma Sowieja DDS, Nicole Forster, Dr. Jennifer Myszkowski and WLOO videographers. The 
pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 
2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: June 2, 2022 [ Cummings/Griffin] VOICE VOTE: Motion Carried. 

 
3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT – Andrew Nothem, DDS and Dr. Jennifer Myszkowski spoke in favor of 

fluoride.  Stating it is important in early development.  Would be happy to discuss further.  Mayor Quimby explained 
discussion was possible with citizen input but if they were interested in being on the agenda they could be added to a 
future meeting.   

 
4) OLD BUSINESS 

a) Leschinger Street – Semi-traffic using newly constructed street (6/2/2022) Update from City Engineer.  Mitch 
Leisses explained road construction.  When they were working on utilities on Leschinger they discovered pipes 
only 2 feet under the ground.  They go over the box culvert that currently exists there.  Leisses has some concern 
with larger trucks using this road way on a daily basis.  Also, the hydrant is close to road and could be damaged 
by trucks due to turning radius.  Motion to reconsider prior motion of trucks on Leschinger [Petts/Cummings] 
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.  C. Kuhl & A. Kuhl abstain.  Motion to keep truck traffic off of Leschinger as it was 
before c.  [Thomas/Petts] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.  C. Kuhl & A. Kuhl abstain.   
 

Motion to move 8 c & d up in the agenda.  [Thomas/Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   
 

 
5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting) 

a) 06/07/2022 and 6/16/2022 Finance, Insurance & Personnel Committee 
 

 
6) CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

a) May Reports of City Officials & Contract Service Providers  Motion to approve [Petts/Cummings]VOICE VOTE: 
Motion carried.   
i) Parks – no report 
ii) Fire & Emergency Medical Services 
iii) Building Inspections 
iv) Public Works 
v) Police 
vi) Library Board 
vii) Water & Light Utility Commission 
viii) Watertown Humane Society 
ix) Cable Television  
 

7) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
a) Finance, Insurance & Personnel 

i) May  2022 Financial Statements: General Disbursements $554,009.32; Payroll $78,736.75 & 
Clerk/Treasurer’s Reports [see on municipal website] Motion to approve [Thomas/C. Kuhl] ROLL CALL: 
Ayes Cummings, A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Griffin, Thomas and Griffin. Noes none. Absent Weihert. Motion carried.   
 
Motion to move 7 b) ii) to end of agenda.  {Thomas/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   
 

b) Waterloo Utilities 
i) Resolution 2022-19 Review of the Annual Wastewater Treatment Plant Compliance Maintenance Report  

Motion [Cummings/A.Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   
ii) Status and possible action of Industrial Agreements. [NOTE: The City Council may meet in closed session 

https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


Page 2 of 2  
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-06-16City Council/2022-06-
02CityCouncilMinutes.docx 
6/28/2022 3:54 PM 

per Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of 
public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 
require a closed session. Upon concluding a closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session. 
Motion to go into closed session [C. Kuhl/Petts] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried Motion to go into open 
session.  [Petts/Cummings] Motion carried.   
 

Motion to approve the agreements as written subject to adjustments of the adl and upgrades shares with July 15 th 
deadline and July 19th date for execution [Petts/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion failed 5-1 
 
Motion to approve the agreements as written subject to adjustments of the adl and upgrades shares with June 29 th 
deadline and July 1st date for execution.  [Thomas/C. Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 5-1 
 

 
8) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Class A & B Beer, Liquor & Cider License Applications Along With A Class C Wine Application For The 
License Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023.  Additional license IMart Store.  300 W Madison St. Waterloo  

b) Cigarette License Applications For the License Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023 
Motion to accept liquor and cigarette license for IMart. [Petts/Cummings] VOICE VOTE:Motion carried. 

c) Resolution 2022-22 Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of a $17,114,000 Combined Utility Revenue 
Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022A.  Dave from Ehlers spoke regarding changes made to prior agreement.  
This has changed to a taxable Bond.  Variable rate draw down loan is the direction they have now chosen to go.  
Staying with Huntington.  Closing date June 30, 2022.  Will draw down 1 million on that date then going forward 
drawing money as needed. Motion to rescind and abandon prior vote regarding Resolution 2022-16. [C. 
Kuhl/Cummings] ROLL CALL: Aye Cummings, A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Griffin, Thomas and Petts. Motion carried.  
Motion to approve new resolution 2022-22[Cummings/C Kuhl] ROLL CALL: AYE Cummings, A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, 
Griffin, Thomas and Petts.  Noes none. Absent Weihert. Motion carried.   

d) Waterloo Utilities borrowing with the City for Jefferson St. Project-Bringing this back from the 4/21/2022 meeting 
for further consideration.  Motion to reconsider borrowing with Utility [Thomas/Griffin] Dave Ehlers spoke to 
consider Utility adding on to Cities current loan.  Utility will need to go out for larger loans in the next few years 
and will pay city back then.  Utility will make all payments for their portion.  Will not impact taxes.  Does raise City 
debt capacity a bit.  Motion to allow Utilities to partner with the city for current loan package(Jefferson St). 
[Thomas/Cummings] ROLL CALL: Ayes Cummings, A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Griffin, Thomas and Petts. Noes none. 
Absent Weihert.  Motion carried.   

e) Resolution 2022-20 Budget Amendment #1  
f) Resolution 2022-21 Contingency Funds-Parks Sump Pump Invoice 

Motion to table both e&f  [Thomas/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   
 
 

9) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

10) ADJOURNMENT[ C. Kuhl/Petts] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   8:45 pm 
 

 
 

 
Attest: 
Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

































https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/PLAN COMM - 4th Tues/2022-06-28 
PlanComm/SCHMIDGALL CUP Public Hearing Notice.docx 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

_____________________________________________________________________________              _________ 

 
 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT UNDER PROVISIONS  

  OF CHAPTER §385-10 B (7) OF THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WATERLOO, 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

     Please take notice that the Plan Commission of the City of Waterloo, 

Jefferson County, Wisconsin, acting under provisions of Chapter §385-10 B(7) of 

the Zoning Code of the City of Waterloo, shall hold a public hearing on the 

matter of a conditional use application received from Wesley Schmidgall, owner 

of 131 Mill St. 

 

 The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow for an 

additional garage on the subject parcel. A conditional use permit is required 

for a Residential District (R-2) property when an additional garage or 

accessory building exceeds 144 square feet. 

 

 The property is described as follows: 

• Parcel 290-0813-0533-028 (OUT LOT 53, ASR PLT) 

• Also known as 131 Mill St. Waterloo 

 

     Be further notified that the Plan Commission will hear all persons 

interested or their agents or attorneys concerning the conditional use permit 

application at a public hearing.  The public hearing will be held at 6:00 p.m. 

on Tuesday, June 28, 2022 in the Council Chamber of the Municipal Building, 136 

N. Monroe Street, Waterloo.   

 

     After the public hearing, the Plan Commission shall recommend approval, 

denial, or conditional approval of the conditional use permit to the Common 

Council. The City Council will act on the Plan Commission's recommendation at 

its regular scheduled meeting on Thursday, July 7, 2022. 
      

     

        

       Jeanne Ritter 

       City Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

 

Pub:  The Courier: June 16, 2022 

http://www.waterloowi.us/




















Monroe and
Clarkson

Apartments
Planned Development District

6.65 acre development located at N Monroe and W Clarkson
Multi-family residential development

96 Units
Three 14 Unit Buildings
Three 18 Unit Buildings

June 2, 2022



Table of Contents

Petition 3

Project Team 4

PDD Details 5

Plans and Renderings 6



Steve Bieda

Mau and Associates

400 Security Blvd Ste 1

Green Bay, WI 54313

Jeanne Ritter

City of Waterloo Clerk-Deputy Treasurer

136 N Monroe St

Waterloo, WI 53594

June 1, 2022

RE: Petition for Rezone/Planned Development District

Dear Clerk Ritter,

Please find this letter along with the attached application documents as a petition to request

for a zoning change for approval for a Planned Development District located at Clarkson and

Monroe for the purpose of creating a multi-family residential development.

Mau and Associates is an agent for Duquaine Development who is looking to develop and

construct the property at the southwest corner of Clarkson and Monroe (Parcel No. 290-0813-

0611-006) to create a multi-family community consisting of 96 total residential units. Three 14-unit

buildings, three 18-unit buildings and 3 detached garage buildings are proposed on the 6.65 acre

property.

Duquaine Development has constructed and/or developed numerous projects throughout

eastern Wisconsin over the decades. We believe this development would provide high quality,

market-rate housing options in Waterloo; providing housing options to meet the on-going demand

for new quality residences in the area.

A site concept layout map, written narrative, and examples of recent Duquaine

Development projects are enclosed with this petition. An e-mailed copy of these documents has

been sent to Jeanne Ritter and Everett Butzine.

We appreciate your consideration and look forward to discussing this concept in the near

future.

Kind regards

Steve Bieda

Mau and Associates



Project Team

Owner (Future) Duquaine Development

4329 Nicolet Drive

Green Bay, WI 54311

Contact: Keith Duquaine

920.371.1973

Project Manager Duquaine Development

4329 Nicolet Drive

Green Bay, WI 54311

Contact: Jake Hoffman

920.371.8834

Planning/Civil Engineer Mau and Associates

400 Security Boulevard

Green Bay, WI 54313

Contacts: Jon LeRoy and David Meister

920.434.9670



PDD Description

Project Overview

The 6.65 acre site is located at the southwest corner of W Clarkson and N Monroe. The

development includes three eighteen (18) unit buildings and fourteen (14) unit buildings.

The units will include some attached garages stalls which will be inward site facing. Most

parking will be placed in surface stalls on sides of buildings or interior detached garage

stalls. Storm water management to be handled by a pond at the south edge of the property.

This project looks to create two story apartment homes which place building fenestration

along the public facing right of way and edge of property while placing needed parking

stalls to the center of the property.

Building designs are in development, but will have a similar look and feel to a project which

was designed and constructed by Duquaine Development in Sun Prairie. In addition,

Duquaine Development has built projects in Jefferson County in the city of Lake Mills and

throughout eastern Wisconsin. Duquaine Development will construct, design and own the

proposed Monroe and Clarkson Apartments. Duquaine has expericene throughout the state

in design, build and ownership. The closest example of this is at the Stonewood Crossing

Apartments in Sun Prairie. Examples of previous builds are attached.

We look forward to your consideration of this development. We believe we have worked

well in communities of this size in filling an ever growing need to provide quality housing

options for existing and new residents.



Duquaine Development Apartment Builds

(Duquaine built and operated units)

Riverside Dr. Howard, WI



Duquaine Development Apartment Builds

(Duquaine built and operated units)

Stonewood Crossing Sun Prairie, WI



Duquaine Development Apartment Builds

(Duquaine designed and built)

Liberty and Bird Apartments Sun Prairie, WI



Duquaine Development Apartment Builds

(Duquaine built)

Rock Creek Apartments Lake Mills, WI











The following Code does not display images or complicated formatting. Codes should be viewed online. 

This tool is only meant for editing.  

§ 385-31 Changes and amendments.  

A. Authority. Whenever the public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning practice 

require, the City may, by ordinance, change the district boundaries or amend, change or supplement 

the regulations established by this chapter or amendments thereto. Such change or amendment shall 

be subject to the review and recommendation of the Plan Commission.  

B. Initiation. A change or amendment may be initiated by the Council, the Plan Commission or by a 

petition of one or more of the owners or lessees of property within the area proposed to be changed.  

C. Petitions. Petitions for any change to the district boundaries or amendments to the regulations shall 

be filed with the Clerk-Treasurer and shall describe the premises to be rezoned or the regulations to 

be amended, list the reasons justifying the petition, specify the proposed use and have attached the 

following: 

(1) A plot plan showing the area proposed to be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the location and 

classification of adjacent zoning districts and the location and existing use of all properties within 

200 feet of the area proposed to be rezoned.  

(2) The owners' names and addresses of all properties lying within 200 feet of the area proposed to be 

rezoned.  

(3) Additional information required by the Plan Commission.  

(4) Fees as stated in the City of Waterloo Fee Schedule. [Amended 11-17-2005 by Ord. No. 2005-4]  

D. Recommendations. The Plan Commission shall hold a public hearing as provided for in 

§ 62.23(7)(d), Wis. Stats., and review all proposed changes and amendments within the corporate 

limits and shall recommend that the petition be granted as requested, modified or denied. The 

recommendation shall be made at a meeting subsequent to the meeting at which the petition is first 

submitted and shall be made in writing to the Council.  

E. Council action. After careful consideration of the Plan Commission recommendations, the Council 

shall vote on the passage of the proposed change or amendment. If the Council denies the proposed 

change or amendment, a similar petition for such change or amendment may not be submitted for a 

period of one year.  

F. Protest. In the event of a protest against such district change or amendment to the regulations of this 

chapter, duly signed and acknowledged by the owners of 20% or more of the land included in such 

proposed change, or by the owners of 20% or more of the land immediately adjacent extending 100 

feet therefrom, or by the owners of 20% of the land directly opposite thereto extending 100 feet from 

the street frontage of such opposite land, such changes or amendments shall not become effective 

except by the favorable vote of 3/4 of the members of the Council voting on the proposed change.  

 









The following Code does not display images or complicated formatting. Codes should be viewed online. 

This tool is only meant for editing.  

§ 385-18 A Agricultural District.  

The A Agricultural District provides exclusively for agricultural uses. The intent is to help conserve good 

farming areas and prevent uncontrolled, uneconomical spread of residential development which results in 

excessive costs to the community for premature provision of essential public improvements and services. 

A. Permitted uses. 

(1) Churches, schools, parks and municipal buildings.  

(2) Farming.  

(3) In-season roadside stands for the sale of farm products produced on the premises.  

(4) Water storage and sewage disposal plants and power stations, when surrounded by an eight-foot or 

more woven fence.  

(5) Nurseries, greenhouses and other agricultural uses.  

(6) Uses customarily incident to any of the above uses, including residential uses incident to any of the 

above uses.  

B. Conditional uses. See also § 385-21 of this chapter. 

(1) Fur farms.  

(2) Kennels.  

(3) Farm machinery repair businesses including welding and metal fabrication not exclusive to farming 

or agricultural implements. [Added 10-7-2021 by Ord. No. 2021-08]  

C. Lot, yard and building requirements. 

(1) Lot frontage: minimum 200 feet.  

(2) Lot area: minimum five acres.  

(3) Residence: 

(a) Yard and building requirements: same as R-1 District.  

(4) Farm buildings: 

(a) Front yard: minimum 300 feet.  

(b) Side yards: minimum 300 feet.  

(c) Rear yard: minimum 300 feet.  

(d) Building height: maximum 50 feet.  

D. Off-street parking and loading. (See § 385-23.) [Amended 3-15-2007 by Ord. No. 2007-05]  

 































Page 1 of 1  

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/FILESHARES/data/common/agendas_ minutes/2022/council - 1st and 3rd thurs/2022-07-07citycouncil/#2022-23 
davison to sign ballots.docx 
6/30/2022 10:43 AM 

                                           

                          136 North Monroe Street 
   Waterloo, WI 53594-1198 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
Fax: (920) 478-2021  

            www.waterloowi.us 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-23 
Appointing Sarah Davison As A Deputy Clerk For Election Administration Purposes  

 
 

Whereas, the City of Waterloo seeks to conduct well-administered elections, and; 
 
Whereas Sarah Davison is a valued employee, having recently started her municipal career, and; 
 
Whereas Sarah Davison has the highest Wisconsin Election Commission certification available to municipal employees, 
and is an indispensable team member in the Clerk/Treasurer’s office, and;  
 
Whereas, the Clerk/Treasurer’s office seeks to conduct well-administered elections, with an additional Deputy adding 
greater office efficiency and flexibility. 
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin, that it hereby appoints Sarah 
Davison as a Deputy Clerk for election administration purposes and thanks her for her work. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____________, 2022. 
        City of Waterloo 
        Signed:  
  
        _______________________________ 
        Mayor Jenifer Quimby 
Attest: 
__________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

http://www.waterloowi.us/

